
 

 

Employees' Consultative Forum 2nd 
Special AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Tuesday 21 December 2010 
 

TIME: 
 

8.00 pm or at the rising of the 1st special 
meeting, whichever is the later 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

PRE-MEETINGS: [Council Side - 7.00 pm - Committee Rooms  1&2 
Employees’ Side - 6.30 pm - Committee Room 6] 

 
  MEMBERSHIP (Quorum:  3 from the Council Side and 3 from the Employees’ 

Side of the permanent membership) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Lynne Ahmad 

 
  Councillors: 

 
Bob Currie 
Graham Henson (VC) 
Phillip O'Dell 
Bill Stephenson 
 

Mrs Camilla Bath 
Susan Hall 
Paul Osborn 
 

  
 

  
Employee Representatives: 
   
Representatives of HTCC: Ms L Snowdon 

 
(2 vacancies) 
 

Representatives of 
UNISON: 

Mr D Butterfield 
Mr S Compton 
 

Mr G Martin 
Mr R Thomas 
(1 vacancy) 
 

Representatives of GMB: 
 

Mr J Dunbar 
 

  
 

(Reserve Council Side Members overleaf) 



 
 
 

Reserve Council Side Members: 
 

1. Ajay Maru 
2. Keith Ferry 
3. Navin Shah 
4. Ben Wealthy 
 

1. Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
2. Tony Ferrari 
3. Stanley Sheinwald 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Vishal Seegoolam, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1883    E-mail:  vishal.seegoolam@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Employees' Consultative Forum - 21 December 2010 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 50 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

4. EMPLOYEES' SIDE REPORT ON JOINT SECRETARY   (Pages 1 - 14) 
 
 Report from the Employees’ Side. 

 
5. INFORMATION REPORT - JOINT SECRETARY - RESPONSE TO UNISON'S 

REPORT   (Pages 15 - 24) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director Human Resources and Development. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



EMPLOYEES’ CONSULTATIVE FORUM (21st December 2010) 

EMPLOYEES’ SIDE REPORT ON Joint Secretary

SUMMARY AND DECISION REQUESTED 

CHRONOLOGY 

Sets out the chronology of the issue including when and with whom the item 
has previously been raised and what the outcomes were at each stage e.g. 

DATE ACTION OUTCOME 
9th Nov 2010  Email from Lesley Clarke to Gary 

Martin 
9th Nov 2009 Email from Lesley Clarke to Gary 

Martin 
9th Nov 2010 Email from Lesley Clarke to Gary 

Martin 
10th Nov 2009 Email from Jon Turner to Gary 

Martin 
12th Feb 2010 Email from Lesley Clarke to Gary 

Martin 
 Letter from Sbit Support to Harrow 

UNISON 
9th April 2010 Email from Varsha Patel to Lesley 

Clarke 
29th June 2010 Letter from Copylogic to Varsha 

Patel 
26th July 2010 Letter from Varsha Patel to Lesley 

Clarke 
 Contract from Copylogic   

UNISON would like to raise it is concerns regarding the position of Joint 
Secretary and the subsequent response we received from Lesley Clarke, 
(Union liaison officer) on the 19th November 2010. It seems that by the 
statement (end of the first paragraph) Ms Clarke has taken the unilateral 
decision to transfer this position to the gmb which will take effect from 1st

January 2011.  

If this unilateral decision is progressed in what we perceive to be an unfair 
manner then Harrow UNISON fully rejects the Joint Secretary Role in its 
entirety. As you will all appreciate the unfairness of the progression of this 
situation will have a major detrimental impact on our members (UNISON) who 
are the majority affected by the BDfR change programme.         

Agenda Item 4 
Pages 1 to 14 

1



REPORT 

Harrow UNISON’s Special ECF report Joint 
Secretary

UNISON would like to raise its concerns regarding the position of Joint 
Secretary and the subsequent response we received from Lesley Clarke 
(Union liaison officer) on the 19th November 2010. It seems that by the 
statement (end of the first paragraph) Ms Clarke has taken the unilateral 
decision to transfer this position to gmb which will take effect from 1st January 
2011.  
This decision does not reflect the equal terms that UNISON perceived would 
be afforded by this position at the start of the BDfR programme when the gmb 
strongly objected to the Joint Secretary Role. UNISON entered into 
negotiations with the gmb in order to seek a mutually agreeable resolve in 
order that Harrows largest Union UNISON should fulfil the role. These 
negotiations were at the expense of one corporate day’s facility time out of 
UNISON’s allocation. 

The aforementioned process has not been reciprocated upon the proposed 
change to the union holding the position.  UNISON also has the added 
problem that the Council openly sympathise with the gmb and have denied 
UNISON the same courtesy in providing one day a week for a liaison officer to 
lead the BDfR.  

It is clearly evident that the council by their admittance wish to restrict 
UNISON’s ability to represent its majority membership. Harrow UNISON has 
had to endure a consistent request for membership information on how many 
members UNISON has employed directly with the local authority. UNISON 
further requests that the council provides evidence to this forum in the form of 
written communication to ensure that the gmb have also been subjected to 
these membership requests over the Joint Secretary role. 

UNISON now makes a formal objection to the position as we feel that our 
members (who are the majority affected by this programme) will be 
disadvantaged by the restrictive measures placed on their Union by the local 
authority. We would also request that the council provides evidence that the 
one day facility time transferred from UNISON was used specifically for the 
BDfR. As you will clearly see from correspondence dated 10th November 2009 
between Jon Turner (Director of H.R.) and (Gary Martin Harrow UNISON 
Branch Secretary) that a request to return the day was ignored or failed to be 
understood by Mr. Turner.  

2



We would like to draw your attention to a situation where upon UNISON was 
financially facilitating the role of Joint secretary and that our financial input 
was seemingly being exploited to provide added facility time which was taken 
by our sister union. This is clearly evident by the production of UNISON’s 
financial records which will be supplied as a separate and confidential 
document which will be disclosed at the meeting. The Joint Secretary role 
commenced on or before the 13th October 2009 which is in the period of the 
Joint Secretary still in secondment with Harrow UNISON LG. This 
secondment arrangement ended on or around the 2nd February 2010. 
We therefore raise the question of where the funding has been allocated for 
this period; I refer you to the attached document 12th February 2010 between 
Gary Martin and Lesley Clarke which clearly identifies an under spend, which 
we in part attribute to the aforementioned situation. 

It is extremely disheartening to find that the council sympathise solely with our 
sister union in reference to their allocated time. Here again we reference the 
correspondence of the 9th November 2010 between Lesley Clarke and Gary 
Martin. Yet again we find that the council fails to understand the position of 
fairness and equality when undertaking these matters. It is not UNISON’s fault 
or responsibility that the gmb membership figures fail to proportionately 
provide greater facility arrangements. 

UNISON would request that the elected members undertake a position of 
fairness and proportionality regarding the Joint Secretary role which, if not 
accommodated by the facility budget will have a greater impact on UNISON 
members. This is evident from correspondence between Lesley Clarke and 
Gary Martin 9th November 2010. 

UNISON has over many years provided a position to reduce the financial 
impact on the council’s facility budget by, the provision of our own IT 
equipment and undertaking a financial contract for the printer/photocopier 
when the council failed to make payment. Again evidence is provided by 
supporting documentation of this significant contribution made by UNISON.  

If this unilateral decision is progressed, in what we perceive to be an unfair 
manner then Harrow UNISON fully rejects the Joint Secretary Role in its 
entirety. As you will all appreciate the unfairness of the progression of this 
situation will have a major detrimental impact on our members (UNISON) who 
are the majority affected by the BDfR change programme.         

AUTHOR: Harrow UNISON LG Branch:  

CONTACT DETAILS: CONTACT DETAILS:  
Harrow L.G. Branch                                                  
The UNISON Office                                                   
Central Depot, Forward Drive                                
Harrow, Middlesex                                                                                               
HA3 8NT 

3



Tel: 020 8424 1795                                                 
Fax: 020 8424 1835
Email: info@harrow-UNISON.org.uk
www.harrow-unison.org.uk

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

EMPLOYEE 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

21 December 2010 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT - Joint 
Secretary – response to Unison’s 
report 

Key Decision: No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Jon Turner, Divisional Director of 
Human Resources & Development 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Graham Henson, Portfolio Holder for 
Performance, Customer Services and 
Corporate Services  

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 

No 
 

 
Enclosures: 
 

 
ECF report dated 28 October 2009 – 
Establishment of a Joint Secretary for 
UNISON and GMB  

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out management’s response to Unison’s report.  It makes 
clear that in the absence of an agreement between Unison and GMB on 
which union would hold the Joint Secretary role at any given point, 
management had no alternative but to decide on the transfer of the role after 
one year from Unison to GMB. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 

Agenda Item 5 
Pages 15 to 24 

15



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. At ECF on 28 October 2009 (attached as Appendix 1), it was noted that 

the Council had provided funding for a Joint Secretary for Unison and 
GMB to support the Better Deal for Residents programme.  This role would 
act as a point of co-ordination on behalf of both unions to ensure that 
information was available to both and therefore both unions were fully 
aware of projects, the programme and workforce implications. 

 
2. The role of Joint Secretary does not remove the right of both trade unions 

to be engaged in consultation and negotiation with management on their 
members behalf and to-date, in addition to the Joint Secretary, 
representatives of both unions have been present at most meetings on the 
Programme  

 
3. In the attached report it should be noted that Unison and GMB agreed that 

for the first year, the union with the larger membership take the role and 
that in the summer of 2010, discussions would again be held to determine 
if the unions could come to an agreement about how to elect the Joint 
Secretary.   

 
4. The following extract from the Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) minutes 

on 10 October confirms the discussions that had been held prior to and at 
the CJC meeting.  The acronyms refer to: 

 
LA  Lynne Ahmad, Unison 
LAC Lesley Clarke 
JD  John Dunbar, GMB. 
 
 
“Joint Secretary for BDfR programme 
LAC confirmed that discussions had taken place between LA, LAC, Adults 
& Housing Services and JD regarding LA moving to her substantive 
position in A&H sooner than had previously been the case.  There would 
need to be a smooth handover from Unison to GMB by end-December 
2010. 

 
JD stated that there was no named GMB representative to take over at 
this stage, but would confirm who this would be, as soon as possible.  
 
JD formally thanked LA, on behalf of GMB, for her work in the Joint 
Secretary role and maintaining good working relationships between both 
unions.” 

 
5. Key to this issue is Unison’s dissatisfaction that GMB have not agreed to 

reciprocate the arrangement that is currently in place between both 
unions, i.e. that Unison offered GMB one of their facility days at the time 
Unison took the role of Joint Secretary.  This is a matter for both unions to 

16



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00069488\$indqxqli.doc 

discuss and not a matter that the Council has a part in which to play. 
 
6. The inclusion of the e-mail exchanges between Lesley Clarke and Gary 

Martin are not reproduced here but in summary the allocation of the 
corporate facility time is: 

 
Pre-Joint Secretary 
Unison 10 days per week; GMB 3 days per week 
 
Post introduction of Joint Secretary position and the taking of the 
role for the first year by Unison 
Unison 10 days per week (though offered one of their days to GMB) and 5 
days per week for the Joint Secretary; GMB 3 days per week (though this 
was increased to 4 through the offer by Unison). 
 
Post introduction of Joint Secretary position and the taking of the 
role for the second year by GMB 
Unison 10 days per week; GMB 3 days per week (they have returned the 
one day offered by Unison back to that union) and 5 days per week for the 
Joint Secretary. 

 
From this it can be seen that there is no detriment suffered by Unison in 
the allocation of the facility time.  It is a matter for GMB whether they wish 
to offer one of their 3 core days to Unison on a reciprocal arrangement. 
 

7. The second issue raised in Unison’s report is that the union has been 
requested to provide information on their membership numbers and on 
elected representatives.  Periodically requesting this information is 
required in order to ensure that the core corporate facility time funding  
(i.e. not including the Joint Secretary role) is allocated fairly between both 
unions.   Both UNISON and GMB have been asked to provide this 
information.  In addition, the Recognition Agreement requires that the 
regional office confirm the names of representatives as they are elected 
and this has not been received in all cases.  In these cases (two), the 
issue has been queried with Unison. 

 
8. Finally, Unison has referred to facilitating the funding of the Joint Secretary 

position at the outset.  That is correct – the union funded the Joint 
Secretary position for a period.  Prior to taking on the role of the Joint 
Secretary, the current incumbent was on secondment to Unison from the 
Council’s employ.  Unison decided to continue the secondment 
arrangement beyond the point she took on the role of the Joint Secretary.  
Although discussions were held with the Unison Branch Secretary on the 
corporate trade union facility time budget covering the costs, he decided 
against that until April 2010.  

 
9. At the last meeting of ECF, Unison made reference to point at 8. above 

and the Divisional Director of Human Resources & Development 
suggested that Unison inform him of the costs borne by Unison and he 
would review the funding arrangements.  To-date that has not been 
received.  Note there is no provision within the 2010/11 budget to meet a 
claim from 2009/10. 

17



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00069488\$indqxqli.doc 

 
10. Also within this point, Unison have referred to funding a photocopier.  It 

would appear that Unison are being charged for the photocopier.  There is 
budget provision to cover these costs and therefore this will be rectified in 
discussion with Copylogic and Unison.  

 
 
 
Considerations 
Resources, costs 
Provision for the costs for the Joint Secretary position are contained within the 
Trade Union facility time budget. 
 
Staffing/workforce  
The role of Joint Secretary is intended to ensure that both unions and their 
members are fully informed and consulted on the staffing / workforce issues of 
the Better Deal for Residents programme.  Both unions retain the right to 
negotiate independently on issues within the programme. 
 
Equalities impact 
In the absence of an agreement between Unison and GMB on how the Joint 
Secretary will be elected, the Organisational Development Manager decided 
that the fairest option was to transfer the role to GMB after one year of the 
role being held by Unison.  Although Unison has the larger membership, there 
are no other equalities issues arising from this decision. 
 
Legal comments 
None 
 
Community safety 
None. 
 
Financial Implications 
There is an additional provision, for the life of the Better Deal for Residents 
programme of £45,000 for the Joint Secretary role.  If the salary costs of the 
person holding that role are at a higher level than this provision, there may be 
a consequent impact on the remaining funding for core facility time.  However, 
costs in 2010/11 are containable.  Costs in 2011/12 will be monitored carefully 
to ensure that funding for the facility time currently allocated is contained 
within budget. 
 
 
Risk Management Implications 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No 
  
Separate risk register in place?  No  
  
Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No 
 
If no, state why an EqIA was not carried out below: 

18



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\4\AI00069488\$indqxqli.doc 

This issue relates to Unison’s dissatisfaction that the role of Joint Secretary 
has been transferred from them to GMB.  Having had an additional 5 days 
facility time for this role during the year, the only equalities issue is that 
GMB, as a similarly recognised trade union, has not to-date had the benefit 
of that additional 5 days to support the Joint Secretary role.  There are no 
other equalities considerations. 
 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The Joint Secretary position is to facilitate co-ordination and communication 
between both unions and management on the Better Deal for Residents 
programme and therefore indirectly supports all corporate priorities. 
 

• Deliver cleaner and safer streets 
• Improve support for vulnerable people 
• Build stronger communities 
 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Steve Tingle X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 8 December 2010 

   
 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Lesley Clarke, Organisational Development Manager, 0208 420 
9309 
 
 
Background Papers:  ECF report of 28 October 2009 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committee: 
 

Employees’ Consultative Forum 

Date: 
 

28 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Establishment 
of a Joint Secretary for UNISON and GMB  

Responsible Officer: 
 

Jon Turner - Divisional Director of Human 
Resources and Development 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Paul Osborn - Portfolio Holder for 
Performance, Communication and 
Corporate Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary
 
 
This report sets out the arrangements in place for a Joint Secretary for UNISON 
and GMB to facilitate negotiation and consultation under the Better Deal for 
Residents transformational programme. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
The council is entering a period of significant change leading to a transformation 
in how the council delivers services.  This will require both unions (GMB and 
UNISON) to be engaged in consultation on the processes and effects of the 

21



 

change.  Both unions have expressed concerns regarding their ability to support 
this level of transformation from within the existing secondment arrangements 
and this could lead to delays in effecting the change required. 
 
The Council has therefore agreed to create and fund a Joint Secretary role to 
ensure that it is able to communicate effectively with the trade unions.  Funding 
for full-time release has been agreed for one person effective from October 2009. 
 
In consultation, Unison were supportive of the proposal to create a Joint 
Secretary role but GMB were not.  However, in order to ensure effective 
consultation with both unions, management concluded that this was the most 
effective use of funding and union representative time and agreement to the 
funding was made by the Leader of the Council. 
 
The terms of reference for the Joint Secretary and the conventions in how this 
role will operate are: 
 
• The Joint Secretary will provide a consistent point of contact on negotiation / 

consultation with the HRD Lead on the ‘Better Deal for Residents’ Programme 
(the Programme).   

 
• It is anticipated that there may be issues that will need to be addressed 

corporately and consequently the HRD Strategy Manager and the HRD Lead 
on the Programme will be liaising closely on these. 

 
• A Programme Partnership Board has been established (with its own terms of 

reference).  Any issues that are unresolved at this level will be referred to 
Directorate Joint Committees for issues that are specific to an individual 
Directorate and to the Corporate Joint Committee for cross-council 
unresolved issues.  Due to the need for speed and the scale of change, there 
may be a need to establish emergency DJC and CJC fora for early 
consideration of the issues. 

 
• For all practical purposes, negotiation and consultation with both UNISON 

and GMB will be two-way via the Joint Secretary.  This does not preclude 
either union sending representatives to key meetings if they wish to do so.  
This practice, however, will be monitored by the HRD Lead to ensure effective 
use of the additional facility time agreed by the council. 

 
• These arrangements are consistent with National and Local arrangements 

under the Joint Negotiating machinery. 
 
Election of Joint Secretary 
For the first year, UNISON and GMB have agreed that the union with the greater 
membership take the Joint Secretary role – this will be UNISON and the Branch 
Secretary is currently considering which representative will take this role.  
 
It is worth noting that the Branch Secretaries of both unions have discussed the 
arrangements and UNISON offered to reduce their current facility time 

22



 

arrangements by one day in order that GMB could increase their facility time by 
one additional day.  This change will be put in place when UNISON has identified 
the person to fill the role of the Joint Secretary. 
 
In late summer of 2010, it is proposed to hold further discussions with both 
unions with the aim of both unions reaching agreement on who will take the Joint 
Secretary role for the following year. 
 
Options include: 
 
• Election by the staff side of the Employee Consultative Forum 
• Nomination by a Trade union based on proportionality of membership 
• Annual rotation between the Trade Unions 

Implications  
Resources, costs and risks 
Introducing the full-time release for a trade union representative to take a role as 
Joint Secretary seeks to ensure that both UNISON and GMB can participate fully 
in negotiation and consultation on the Better Deal for Residents programme 
whilst making best use of council funding. 

Staffing/workforce  
The Better Deal for Residents transformation programme has significant staffing 
implications.  The additional funding agreed by the Leader of the Council is 
intended to support collective bargaining and consultation processes to ensure 
that the views of union members are considered in any process of change. 
 
Equalities impact 
There is no equalities impact from this arrangement. 
 
Legal comments 
There are no legal implications from this arrangement. 

Risk Management Implications 
Risk included on Directorate risk register? No  
  
Separate risk register in place? / Yes – Better Deal for Residents transformation 
programme
 

23



 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 

The funding of £47,000, agreed by the Leader, to establish full-time release for a 
trade union representative to fill a Joint Secretary role, is believed to be both 
supportive of the need to ensure staff views are considered in transformational 
change whilst making best use of funded facility time arrangements. 
 

 
 

  
on behalf of the 

Name: Jennifer Hydari ! Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:  15 October 2009 

  

 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Lesley Clarke, HRD Strategy Manager, 0208 420 9309 
 
Background Papers:  None
 
 

24


	Agenda
	4 Employees' Side Report on Joint Secretary
	Employees - Joint Secretary Report Appendix

	5 Information Report - Joint Secretary - Response to Unison's Report
	Management - ECF Joint Secretary Report 21 Dec Appendix


